
Inre: 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF AGRICULTURE 

United Producers, Inc., 

Respondent 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

P & S Docket No. 12- 0~ 35 

Complaint 

There is reason to believe that the Respondent named herein has willfully violated the 

Packers and Stockyards Act, 1921, as amended and supplemented (7 U.S.C. §§ 181 ~.)(Act) 

and the regulations promulgated thereunder by the Secretary of Agriculture (9 C.F.R. §§ 201.1 ~ 

~-)(Regulations), and, therefore, this complaint is issued alleging the following: 

I. 

(a) United Producers, Inc. (Respondent) is a cooperative incorporated and existing 

under the laws ofthe State of Ohio. Respondent's mailing address is 8351 North High Street, 

Suite 250, Columbus, OH 43235. 

(b) Respondent is, and at all times material herein was: 

1. Engaged in the business of conducting and operating a stockyard, No. 

M0161, physically located at 22783 US Highway 71, Maryville, MO 64468, 

which is posted under and subject to the provisions of the Act; 

2. Engaged in the business of buying and selling livestock in commerce on a 

commission basis; 

3. Registered with the Secretary of Agricultu~e as a dealer buying and selling 

livestock in commerce for its own account or for the account of others; and 



4. Registered with the Secretary of Agticulture as a market agency buying 

and selling livestock in commerce on a commission basis. 

II. 

On June I, 2007, a Consent Decision, signed by Respondent, was issued in the case ofln 

re: United Producers. Inc., P&S Docket No. D-07-0079. The Consent Decision ordered 

Respondent to cease and desist from creating false or misleading records in connection with its 

activities subject to the Act. In accordance with section 401 of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 221), the 

Consent Decision further ordered Respondent to keep accounts, records, and memoranda which 

fully and correctly disclose all of the transactions involved in its business as a livestock dealer 

and market agency, including but not limited to, true and correct copies of invoices and 

supporting records pertaining to all cattle purchases, sales, and financing arrangements. The 

Consent Decision also assessed a civil penalty against Respondent in the amount of Ninety-Six 

Thousand Dollars ($96,000.00). 

III. 

(a) Respondent, on or about the dates and in the transactions set forth in Appendix A 

and incorporated herein by reference, generated purchase invoices with false information at the 

request of two registered livestock dealers, Thomas Witt and Louis "Corky" Holle. The 

invoices, which were produced after the livestock had been purchased at Respondent's 

Maryville, Missouri posted stockyard, listed purchase prices for livestock that were higher than 

the actual purchase prices. Mr. Witt and Mr. Holle then provided these invoices to their 

customers to whom they transferred the livestock. Mr. Witt and Mr. Holle's customers were also 

customers of Respondent's Maryville, Missouri posted stockyard. In addition, in some instances, 

the weights of livestock listed on the invoices are unsupported because some loads of livestock 
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were sorted, but not reweighed before Mr. Witt and Mr: Holle transferred the livestock to their 

customers, and the weights listed on the invoices were not othetwise supported by a scale ticket. 

(b) In a letter dated July 1, 20 II to Jay Johnson, the Regional Director of the Des 

Moines, Iowa Regional Office of the Packers and Stockyards Program at the time, Bradley J. 

Warner, Respondent's Controller and Assistant Treasurer, admitted that during a visit to 

Respondent's Maryville, Missouri posted stockyard, a Packers and Stockyards Program 

representative had discovered that the price listed on some invoices issued by the stockyard did 

not match the price printed on the auction sale tickets. In the letter, Mr. Warner further admitted 

that this practice did not follow Respondent's policy that all transactions must be supported by a 

scale ticket. Mr. Warner also admitted that he discovered that the buyers had requested the 

prices be changed on the invoices and that personnel at Respondent's Maryville, Missouri posted 

stockyard had complied. The letter is attached hereto as Appendix B and incotporated herein by 

reference. 

IV. 

Respondent, in connection with its operations subject to the Act, failed to keep and 

maintain accounts, records, and memoranda that fully and correctly disclosed all transactions 

involved in its business as a market agency, including, but not limited to, scale tickets, and 

purchase invoices which completely and accurately reflect the tme nature of the transactions as 

required by section 401 of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 221) and as more fitlly specified in section 203.4 

ofthe Statements of General Policy Under the Act (9 C.P.R.§ 203.4). 
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v. 

By reason of the facts alleged in paragraph III herein, Respondent has willfully violated 

section 312(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 213(a)) and section 201.55 of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 

201.55). 

By reason of the facts alleged in paragraph IV herein, Respondent has willfully violated 

section 401 of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 221) by failing to keep and maintain records that fully and 

correctly disclose all transactions involved in its business subject to the Act. 

WHEREFORE, it is hereby ordered that tllis complaint shall be served upon the 

Respondent for the purpose of determining whether Respondent willfully violated the Act and 

the Regulations. Respondent shall have twenty (20) days after receipt of this complaint in which 

to file an answer with the Hearing Clerk, Room 1031-South Building, United States Department 

of Agriculture, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW., Washington, DC 20250-9200, in accordance 

with the Rules of Practice Governing Formal Adjudicatory Proceedings Instituted by the 

Secretary Under Various Statutes (7 C.F.R. §§ 1.130 ~.)(Rules of Practice). Allegations not 

answered shall be deemed admitted for the purpose of this proceeding. Failure to file an answer 

will constitute an admission of all the material allegations of tllis complaint. 

The Packers and Stockyards Probrram, Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyards 

Administration requests: 

1. That unless Respondent fails to file an answer within the time allowed, or files an 

answer admitting all the material allegations of this complaint, this proceeding be set for oral 

hearing in accordance with the Rules of Practice; and 

2. That such order or orders be issued, including an order requiring Respondent to 

cease and desist from the violations of the Act and the Regulations found to exist, and assessing 

4 



such civil penalties against Respondent as are authorized by the Act and warranted under the 

circumstances. 

Leah C. Battaglioli 
Attorney for Complainant 

Done at Washington, D.C. 

this /4 day of Sc11 -b-111Ll<A , 2012 

_A R.U...J.~ 
Alan R. Christian 
Deputy Administrator 
Packers and Stockyards Program 

Marlceting, Regulatory, and Food Safety Programs Division 
Office of the General Counsel 
United States Department of Agriculture 
Room 2309, Stop 1413 
1400 Independence Ave., SW. 
Washington, DC 20250 
(202) 720-5191 
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~PPENDIXA 

Oeparbnent of Agriculture 
Grain Inspection, Packers and Stoekylrdl Administration 

Packers and Stockyards Program (P&SP) 

18· 75 MX HFR 
TOTAL .2!.., MX HFR 

head were K~rwd Sn.to 2 croups (5 •nd a head) 
• seal• tlekfts to suppo'1: sur~ weltflts 

l
~ sorted off wrnr ~rked-up 

lfO!:'~lD .~~!lo IOn"'Witt .. 700-91 l X HFR . ouoq~ U~ )ltl.OO S94-~ 11/011/10 145'5 Tom Wttt 700·99 I MXsnl/Hf~ 1.790 $77.98 $1.395.90 ($21.53) NA bmalnif\lalves we~m;ried-down ~;:.'!'~1/'~;,:~_;;.:;:j:J~SU:ITI!T~~~ ... ~.O.!DJI!i!<~'":52-~!o-~ ~~......J.~Sli~At;;,.~_#:;e.~·>i'~l:i~l,91~.,;;dH.~ .. ,-:,.c;,_$Z,~?S-'IO- ~"$0,00.._..,_$m_,_uj T~r . .-.credrfOf!_IIIO.'r.~n'Offio~cliit""':l 
700.6 44 MXSTR 000290 

Tam Witt 700-6 8 MXS111 000336 

To!'nWitt 700-1; 1 XSll\ 000361 
1455 TomW1t1 700-6 1 sxm 000364 
8'1.5> r..,Wltt 700-6 2 BkSTR 000388 1,l45 $116.00 S1.S60.20 I 111109/10 8454 Jeff M-anternach 

!&"*''~£t::;~~~L;.S&;.wii>~ 

84SS TomWrtt 700-28 2 l!.K HFR 000167 
11455 TomW1tt 700-l& S9 MX HFA 000176 
8455 TomW•r. 700-28 • CHARHFR 000207 
11455 Tom Witt 700-28 I BkHFR 
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8740 Tom Witt 700-45 19 BI(STR 
87« Tom Witt 700-45 • MXSTR 
8744 Tom Witt 700·45 11 IKSTR 
87 •• Tom Witt 700--45 16 MX STR 
8744 Tom Witt 700-4S 23 MXSTR: 
1744 TcmWitt 700-AS 7 BKSTJI 
1744 TomW1tt 700-45 s BKS'"' 

TOTAL~ 

leonard Clttl• CantJ~Anv 
leor.trd cat:tte Comp•ny 
leoNrd Cattle Company 

2602 Ed DIY 115- ll BKCOW 
TOTAL .2!.. Bk COW 

lll-9 101 ,.xsn 
TOTAL~ 
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I rom Witt recaivtd a crwdlt off the tafll ptnh.as. 

received • r::rfl>dlt oft n,e totar purd!••• 

Torn Witt 700.17 1 BWfCOW 000029 ... 559.1)0 
Torn Witt 700·17 1 BWFCOW 000037 ... $84.00 

89!1 Tom Witt 700·11 l BKCOW ooooss. 910 $55.00 

8981 Tomwrtt 7CI0-17 1 CHARHFW 000083 1,18S S87.50 

891!1 Tom Witt 700..17 3 BKCOW 000141 3,BS 595.00 
8981 Tom Witt 7D0-17 4 BKCOW 000142 4,97() $80.00 $l,t75.00 
8981 Torr. Witt 70D-17 1 Rf:OCOW 000146 990 590.00 $191.00 
Sllll Tont Witt 7Q0-17 ' 8KHFR 000151 1.,965 ssa.zs $1.930.61 .. ., TOni Witt 700-17 2 OiARHFA 000151 2,240 $79.50 $1,7&0.80 .... , T0l11Witt: 700.17 .c4 MX HrR 000174 35,610 $1l3.00 $40,261.90 
89111 Tom Witt 700-1? 3 MXHFR 000184 """ $111.50 $2,737.33 

11981 Tom Witt 700-17 l BKHFR 000185 ... $93.00 $916.0S 

1981 Tom Witt 700·17 2 REDHFJt 000205 1.,910 $95.'10 $1,8:Z4.05 

85181 Tom Witt 700-17 l BKHFI\ 000223 '" $95.00 $831.25 
8981 Tom Win 700·17 ' BK~FR 000244 1,915 $11.00 $1,SS1.1S 
8981 Tom Witt 71)(>17 • BKHFR 000245 6,895 $109.75 $7,567.26 
8981 TcmWitt -17 • MXHFII 000257 7,270 $11200 $1,142..40 
8981 Tomwttt 700-17 I CHAAHFR 000281 81S 5112.00 $912.80 

8981 TofT! Witt 700.17 13 BKHFI\ 000!23 9,630 $115.50 S11.172.6S 
8981 ToT'nWitt 700-17 1 BKHFR 000!31 820 $75.00 $615,00 .. ., TotnWitt ?00-17 1 XHFJI 000.!32 960 S&S.OO $624.00 
8981 T01nWitt 700-11 2 MXHrR 000354 1,730 $90 . .50 $1,56S.f.iS 

8981 Tom Witt 700-17 1 BKHFR 000371 850 $107,00 $909.50 
8981 Tom Witt 700-17 I SKHFR 000429 71S 

8981 Tom Witt 700-17 1 BKHFR 000457 
8981 Tom Witt 7CKH7 4 BkHFR 000458 
8981 Tom Witt 700--17 I RWfCOW 000110 1.140 $'18.00 S88ll.m I I o>l151u !978 leo~lrd CmleComJ)IIny 190.2 liS MXHFR 
B9B1 Tom Witt 700-17 ' BKCOW 8981 Tom Witt 700-17 51 MXHFA; 

Ulfi~~ ~,tu•~ ~~~~~-~ 
1911 To"'IWitt 700-<1 57 MX STR 19~1 

Tam Witt 

Tom 'Witt 700-la 1 RED~FA 000080 1,210 $75.00 

romWkt 700.18 2 BKCOW 000091 l,16S 589.'10 
91-48 Tom Witt 700.18 • RKCOW 000093 C,690 $95.50 
914ft Tamwttt 700.18 1 ••cow 000095 010 $&4.00 
9148 Tom Witt 7D0-18 1 81CCOW 000!29 1.025 S9.1i..50 
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$80.00 
Tom Witt 700-tl 3 8KHFR 000199 J,lSS $90.50 

9lAB Tom Witt 7()0-18 ' BIC.HFR 000201 ~020 $7S.SO 
1148 Tom Witt _.8 ' III:HFR 000209 1,175 $14.00 

9148 romwm 700·111 l1 61CHFR 000223 8,9<5 $1U.7S 510,174.94 
914& '!'GmWitt 700-18 ' 811:1-tnt 000390 1.015 $81.00 5831.35 

91 .. Tom Witt 700.18 1 IKHFR DO(M02 795 $101,00 $1102.95 

9148 Tomwttt 700·18 1 BWF)olf'R 000124 885 $70.00 $619.50 

91 .. TOmWftt 7()0-18 l REOH'f'!t 000437 855 $70.00 $598.50 

70D-ll l 8KOOW 000082 ... $85SO $850.73 I 05/10/11 9142 Loonord Cottle Company 190-1 17 MX cow 78.150 $109.62 
vnm $76.00 ~~~~:-~-if:riTMif:,,,...,7£ii.tiMii'k~~~"'- .1'a_t:Vk ~1fMuD. C•IIIO...tlll._':l'711 .... t4nn u(!~:ll.r~,..,.~~~~..tr;'&~;;.w;a~..~r-~-:;.~.:.·:':">t-~'- ~i ... ':...~ ~l.c.•T~~ "''··--· - ~----"· tl'll.l\ .... 4:tftlll. .. , ....... ~-tn.711n.'lllfll 

9148 

9148 TomWIU 

9141 Tomw:tt 
9148 Tom Witt 

91<8 Tom'Nitt 
9148 TomWott 
91 .. Toi'I'IWit1 

Tom Witt 700.25 24 MXi-!Fit 000227 13,125 Sll5.75 $17,314.94 

9184 TomWltt 700.2S 13 B!tHFR 000241 6.970 $111.25 $9,148.13 

9114 To!TIWftt 700.15 2 BI(HfR 0002S!I 1.065 $12!.50 $1.)61.53 

9114 To., Win 700-lS 2 EU::HF1\ 000265 ~100 $118.DO $~392.40 

91811 Tom Witt 700-25 4 MX.HFR 000271 2,240 $t21.7S $2,727.20 

9184 TcmWitt 70().25 16 Bkl"fAl cocm 9,395 $110.75 $12.283.96 ..... TorYIWrtt 700-25 16 B'(HNI 000293 8,815 5130.75 

9184 Tom Witt 7()0.25 2 SWFHF"R (1()(1330 SIC $120.00 
9\84 TomWftt 700.25 • BKHHI. 000342 2,485 $120.50 

9184 TornWit1 700.25 I 91CHFR 000343 510 5119.00 
91&1 TornW1U 700-25 2 MXHFR 000145 1,215 $114.00 

9184 famW1tt 70D-2S 3 MXHFR . ~615 $110.00 $1.938.00 I I CS/14/11 9183 M1ttyBwlatt 700-55 !8 MX HFR 49,835 $129.2$ S6•,4un I I $2.00 S1.031.,S!I•!tteadortCINttdonbr.ft't'rll700·11 
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